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During lockdown | have continued sorting Congresbury History Group
documents and photos. Following my lockdown articles on Station Road,
Broad Street and the Ship & Castle | thought | would do something on
High Street / Brinsea Road.

This is not a definitive history. It & just an attempt to rekindle memories
and provide a bit of diversion during this difficult period.

If anyone has any additional information it will be gratefully received

Chris Short
January 2021

Please note all photos are Congresbury History Group copyright



HIGH STREET AND BRINSEA ROAD
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On the corner of Broad Street and High Street stands the substantial building known as
Bridge House where currently Debbie Fortune, Estate Agentshave offices.

Mrs Browning had vivid memories of the great flood of 1887, and how the water was
washing over the counter of Mrs Wilkins' grocery shop which was then at Bridge House.

By the early 1900s Mrs King had taken over the running of this shop, which continued to sell
provisions. Her husband William was a carrier who stabled his horses on the opposite side of
the road in a yard belonging to the Ship and Castle. The 1902 Kelly's Directory shows him as
a carrier to Bristol on Tuesdays, Thursdays and Saturdays passing through Cleeve, West
Town, Flax Bourton and Long Ashton before reaching the Hope and Anchor, Redcliffe Hill.
Later his business was sold to MrJim Gill.

Mr & Mrs King i” early 1900s

Mr Job Crewthen acquired the shop and about 1920 his daughter Alice was running this
shop and his sor-in-law Mr Thomas Gosling was operating hiswheelwright, carpentry and
building business from the yard adjacent to the house.

Mr Thomas Goslinghad initially set up his business in Smallway, then moved to buildings
adjacent to the Spotted Horse where he had taken over the license from Mr Job Crew. Then



came the move to Bridge House where he was joined in business by his son Frank, who
recalled how he had to be up at 5.30 am to carry the buckets of water to the steam engine
which operated the saws, in order to "get up steam" for the men to start work at 6 o'clock.

Amongst the employees at Bridge House were Mr Harry Palmer and Mr Hubert Weaver who
joined the business from school and remained until retirement. One afternoon, when lads,
these two decided that a visit to the cinema, then held one day a we ek in the Memorial Hall,
was preferable to work. When the lights went on at the end of the film, they discovered that
they were sitting next to Mrs Gosling, the boss's wife!

Reg Bailey

In 1921 the Goslings moved to a site in Brinsea Road,and Mr W R "Reg" Bailey bought
Bridge House.

Bailey's store became a weltknown village landmark recalled as follows by Ray Atwell:

"Before he moved here Mr Bailey would come to Congresbury Fair and lay out his harnesses
for sale near the cross. You had to go down a step to go inside his shop where the road has
been built up so many times. When you went in the bell on the door would ring until you
closed it. You looked around and the shop was absolutely full of all sorts of things to do with
farming. If a farmer wanted anything Bailey's was the place to go.

There was a big pair of scales on the counter where they used to weigh up nails or staples.
Just inside the door there were pigeonholes each full of different size nails, half an inch up
to six inches long.

When Mr Bailey went there farming was by hand. You could find in his shop reap hooks, two
pronged forks, and yokes and mole traps hung on the wall. If a farmer went into an iron -
mongers today and asked for a bundle of 50 spars they would wonder what was meant 'cos
they're not used today. A spar is a piece of withy stick about a yard long, which is split in

two and bent over like a big hair pin. They were used for thatching hay mows (ricks).

Mr Bailey originally lived in Bridge House, but later moved to a house next to the Memorial
Hall. This meant that every room in the house was used for stores. He also had some big
sheds out in the yard, and he rented the Ship and Castle yard, where he kept a lot of
wheelbarrows and rows of barbed wire and fencing.

Although he had all the old implements, he kept up to date. He had a lot of items you'd find
in a milking parlour today. But if a stranger went into that shop, they would think it was a
museum of old farming implements. It's a pity that when Mr Bailey retired, they didn't turn it
into such a place. 0

The contents of Bailey's were sold by auctions on the 28th of August and 11th September
1975.
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On the opposite side of the road is

TheMemorial Hall

Ladies and children outside the hall in 1923. What was the event?



In April 1919 it was decided that the building of a Memorial Hall would be a
fitting tribute to the 24 local men who had died in World War One.

A memorial committee was subsequently formed and from that was selected
a building committee.

Twelve months later, some £2,200, (about £100,000 today), of the estimated build
cost of £3,000 had been raised through fetes, donations, subscriptions and

loans. This was enough to commence construction. Working to plans drawn up by
Congresbury architect and builder George Wear, village men did all the hard graft
and just one carpenter working with a 14-year-old boy, did all of the extensive
woodwork.

The hall was unveiled on the 7" December 1920, with around 600 people from the
Congresbury area in attendance.

Dr Pearce

To the right of the Memorial Hall (second house down) is Lingfield, which was until the late
1960s, the home and surgery of the village doctor, Dr Pearce His waiting room was in a
lean to / conservatory and the consulting room inside the house. His wife generously left the
paddock behind the house to the village and this is now part of the Millennium Green.

On the other side of the street is

The Old Rectory /Silvercraig

The Old Rectory in 2014

The OId Rectory, formerly The Rectory, was where the Dean and Chapter held court and
according to the Parish Magazine for August 1951 was, sometime before 1900, the home of
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the curate of Congresbury church. This Grade 11 listed building has a mid-18th century
facade, but the rear of the building suggests a 17th century date. It is now split into two
houses, called Silvercraig and The Old Rectory.

Memorial Hall, left, and right The Old Rectory /Silvercraig then the Methodist church.

Methodist Church

In 1878 the Methodists built the current chapel in High Street, with 150 seats and a meeting
room beside it. A new porch was added to the chapel in the 1990s.
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UNITED METHODIOT CHAPEL, CONGRESBURY. T.H.5. & Co . B & C,

The “Progresa™ Serics, Noo 343,

The current Methodist chapel in High Street c1910.



Fernba nk

Fernbank January 2021

In 1875, the Sheppy milling family acquired a large plot of land in the High Street, for the building of
their new family home, Fernbank. The adjacent Methodist Church was built on their land and with
their support, commemorated by a plague in the churahd evidenced by a note written by
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Wool Shop
Just after the Methodist Church in the High Street is a shop front now blocked up.

The shop window (Date unknown). To the right is Fernbank and the Methodist church.



